ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 13, 2003
1:40 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or G et chen Cuess

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 215
"An Act giving notice of and approving the entry into and the
i ssuance of certificates of participation for a |ease-purchase
agreenent for a seafood and food safety |aboratory facility;
relating to the use of certain investnent incone for certain
construction costs; and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SB 215(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 19
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund.

MOVED SJR 19 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 211
"An Act relating to the publishing and furnishing of certain
public notices regarding regulations or rules of certain state
agencies; relating to distribution of the Alaska Admnistrative
Code, Alaska Admnistrative Register, and supplenents to the
code or register; and providing for an effective date."”

MOVED SB 211 OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 22(RLS)
Relating to the USA PATRIOI Act, the Bill of R ghts, the
Constitution of the State of Alaska, and the civil |iberties,
peace, and security of the citizens of our country.

MOVED HIR 22 OUT OF COW TTEE

#SJR 15
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 15

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- May 13, 2003



Relating to the USA PATRIOT Act and to defending the Bill of
Rights, the Constitution of the State of Al aska, and civil
l'i berties.

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
#

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 215 — No previous action to record.
SJR 19 — No previous action to record.
SB 211 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 5/8/03.
HIR 22 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Ernesta Ball ard

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Environnmental Conservation
410 W | oughby

Juneau, AK 99801-1795

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

Deven M tchell

Debt Manager, Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

Kristin Ryan

Director, Division of Environnmental Health
Departnent of Environnental Conservation
410 W | oughby

Juneau, AK 99801-1795

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

John MacKi nnon
Deputy Conm ssi oner, H ghways and Public Facilities
Department of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

Tom Li vi ngst on
No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- May 13, 2003



Roger Pai nter

Al askan Shel I fish Growers Association
No address provided

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

Jul i e Decker

Executive Director, South East Regional Dive Association
No address provided

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 215

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor SJR 19

Mar k Gnadt

Aide to Representative Eric Croft

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIR 19

Bob Bart hol onmew

Chi ef Qperating Oficer

Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation

P. O Box 25500

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIJR 19

Petria Fal kenberg

Box 3293

Kenai, AK 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIJR 19

Janmes Price

P. 0. Box 7043

Ni ki ski, AK 99635

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SJR 19

Fred Sturnman

Box 513

Sol dot na, AK 99669

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIJR 19

Roger Shannon

11823 Kenai Spur H ghway

Kenai, AK 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIJR 19

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- May 13, 2003



Lori Churchill

Box 7043

N ki ski, AK 99635

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIJR 19

Ruby Ki me

Box 334

Ni nilchik, AK 99639

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIR 19

Craig Tillery

Assi stant Attorney General, Environnental Section
1031 W 4'" Ave, Suite 200

Anchor age, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

Senat or Johnny Ellis

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- Sponsor SJR 15 and testified on HIR 22

Joe Stewart

Aide to Representative David CGuttenberg
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

John Bradi ng
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Frank Tur ney
No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Scott Cal der
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Jodi d nst ead
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

G aham St or ey

Nome Chanber of Commerce
No address provided

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- May 13, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Jenni f er Ruddi nger

Executive Director ACLU

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Ti m Bur gess

U. S. Departnent of Justice

No address provi ded

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

Rynni eva Moss

Ai de to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 22

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-30, SIDE A

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:40 p.m Present were Senators
Fred Dyson, John Cowdery, G etchen Guess and Chair Gary Stevens.
The first order of business to cone before the commttee was SB
215.

#SB 215
SB 215- SEAFOOD AND FOOD SAFETY LABORATORY

ERNESTA BALLARD, Comm ssioner of the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation, said she would testify to the program aspects of
the bill. She gave the follow ng testinony:

Imagine it is 5:00 pm on Friday, you are a dairy
processor and your pasteurization equipnent breaks
down. The scenario is not uncommon. To fulfill your
school and mlitary contracts, FDA requires that a
state lab certify your equi pnent is operating
correctly again and test the product to nake sure.
MIk can’t wait until Monday norning. The Seafood and
Food Safety Laboratory staff is there to make sure
your product is safe for consunption and mekes it to
market while it’s fresh. Qurs 1is the only lab
certified in Alaska to test dairy products to ensure

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 13, 2003



successful pasteurization so they can be sold to the
mlitary and school s.

SB 215 provides the funding mechanism to build a new
Seaf ood and Food Safety Lab. The expense is already in
our proposed capital budget. The facility we have
| eased for 34 years will not be available after 2006
It is overcrowded and not fully conpliant with safety
codes and |aboratory design standards. I t was
devel oped in Palnmer when the principal |ab business
was agriculture and dairy. In recent years
entrepreneurs in coastal Alaska have devel oped a w de
variety of value added seafood products adding a
significant and tinme sensitive testing responsibility
for our lab. Qur proposed new lab will be in Anchorage
where valuable hours can be saved between sanple
collection and test results for raw and |live seafood
i ndustri es.

A core function of government is protection of human
health and the environnent. Gover nnent must be
prepared to respond to unanticipated outbreaks of
di sease or the presence of contamnation in food,
water and aninmals. The Al aska seafood and food safety
| aboratory fulfills these functions. W analyze raw,
finished, and val ue-added food products for bacteria,
chem cal s, and toxic contam nants.

The | aboratory protects Al askans by nonitoring aninmals
for zoonotic diseases—transferred from animals to
humans—such as brucellosis. Lab technicians test food
products for botulism salnonella, listeria and fecal
coliforms and also test public drinking water for
giardia, a common contam nant found in surface water

and cryptospori di um

The |aboratory supports the seafood, dairy and
shel I fish industries.

To successfully market Al aska’ s high quality shellfish
and seafood, the public nust be assured they are safe.
Federal requirenments for shellfish are very strict
because the health risks are great. Through nonitoring
and testing the lab assures the safety of Alaska's

gr ow ng shel I fish i ndustry, i ncl udi ng geoducks,
mussels and oysters. Through new PSP sanpling and
testing procedures, |ive geoduck sales have begun to

enable the industry to ship approxinmately 50-60

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 13, 2003



percent of its geoduck quota Ilive, increasing its
value three fold. Wen the industry reaches its goal
of 85 percent live shipment, the industry’s value wll
be worth approximately $2.5 mllion.

A perfect exanple of how this lab has and wll
continue to help Alaska s econony grow is the farned
oyster industry. As |I'm sure you all know, Al askan
oysters are top quality and easily nerit their good
whol esal e price. In the recent past, this industry did
not exist. DEC |ab staff are sonme of the experts who
hel ped oyst er farmers get started. Wth our
assi st ance, farmers set up operations that met
Nat i onal Shellfish Sanitation standards, which nust be
nmet to sell raw product. Those standards require that
DEC sanple the growing water to ensure it is free from
contam nation. As the industry grew, it becane nore
difficult for our staff to travel to renote |ocations
for the collection of water sanples. W devel oped a
method for harvesters to collect their own water
sanpl es thereby increasing the opportunity for grow ng
areas to be approved. The laboratory is also providing
proof that Al aska’s commercial fish species are of the
hi ghest quality and free of contam nants by nonitoring
comercially caught species for pollutants. Over 600
sanples were collected |last year and the results wll
be avail abl e next nonth.

The laboratory supports Alaska's private |abs by
certifying themto conduct drinking water analysis. W
train 190 private lab staff a year on how to test
drinking water according to EPA standards, and assi st
private |aboratories in obtaining certification and
approval to performfederally regulated tests.

We cannot depend on private |aboratories to maintain
testing and analytical capabilities for situations
when there is no profit margin. Wen private narkets
devel op, our |aboratories get out of the business. For
exanpl e, the Seafood and Food Safety Laboratory does
not test drinking water for fecal coliform because
private |abs are capable of conducting those tests.
The DEC |aboratory only conducts tests that are
federally required to be done by a state lab or are
not provided el sewhere in the state.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- May 13, 2003



The health of Alaskans and the success of Alaska's
seaf ood, shellfish and dairy industries are contingent
upon the snooth and continued operation of the seafood
and food safety |l|aboratory. Through our testing,
nonitoring, and technical support, the I|aboratory
assures the health of Al askans and our environnent,
and  supports the devel opnent of our abundant
resour ces.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS announced he had a neno from | egal counsel
suggesting an anmendnent to change the title. He asked for a
notion to adopt the commttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR JOHN COWDERY made a notion to adopt CSSB 215 \ D version
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

SENATOR COWDERY asked why certificate of participation bonds
(COPs) rather than general obligation bonds were suggested as
t he fi nanci ng mechani sm

DEVEN M TCHELL, Treasury Division Debt Manager wth the
Department of Revenue, explained that COPs are a type of
financing tool that are used for specific projects that don’'t
warrant a statewide election. The Legislature authorizes the
appropriation of the |ease paynent on an annual basis. They are
a lower obligation than general obligation bonds (G0, which
carry the full faith and credit of the state.

SENATOR COWNDERY referred to the fees listed on page 2 and asked
whet her they were typical for this type of funding and where the
fees go.

MR. M TCHELL explained the costs associated with COPs are the
project itself and the cost of issuing the bonds. [Balance
i ndi scerni bl e due to background noi se. |

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the fees would go directly to the | ab.

MR MTCHELL said the fees on page 2, lines 12-17 are
interrelated. They are the sizing of the COPs and anticipate the
rei nvestment of bond proceeds over the course of the project
period. There is a $140,000 estimate on earnings on those
proceeds so the issuance anmount is $14, 145,000 identified on
line 9. That is added to the $140,000 in anticipated earnings
for a project total size of $14,285,000. The $1,391,000 on line
15 is the anticipated principal and interest paynents for the
COPs that would be paid on an annual basis. The $20, 862,000 on

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 13, 2003



line 16 is the total principal and interest repaynent that would
occur over the 15 year life of the certificates.

SENATOR COWDERY asked whether any pass-through federal funding
was avail abl e.

COMM SSI ONER BALLARD said they were not aware of any.

SENATOR COWDERY asked how many enployees were in the existing
| ab and how nany would be in the new | ab.

KRI STIN RYAN, Director for the Division of Environnental Health,
replied there are 25 enployees in the Palnmer |ab. Eleven
positions are specifically lab related and would nove to the new
facility. Fourteen would remain in the Palnmer facility and one
addi ti onal wastewater specialist would join that facility.

SENATOR COWDERY said he thought the |ease was due to expire at
t he Pal nmer | ab.

M5. RYAN replied the current |ease expires in 2006. Some non-l|ab
rel ated personnel have already noved to another facility and
nore woul d do so.

SENATOR FRED DYSON referred to the 1997 Departnent of
Adm nistration (DOA) determnation regarding long-term | eases
and statutory rent reduction requirenents and asked for an
expl anat i on.

COWMWM SSI ONER BALLARD admitted there was no one present that
coul d provide an expl anati on.

SENATOR DYSON remarked it would be easier to change the statutes
than to nove to a new facility. He reviewed the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR) fiscal note and asked if it was correct that
$200, 000 per year woul d pay back the COPs.

MR. M TCHELL admitted the nunmbers in the fiscal note from DOR
and those in the bill differ slightly. The fiscal note shows
$1, 362,800 being paid annually for debt service.

SENATOR DYSON asked where that noney would cone from

MR, M TCHELL said it would cone fromthe general fund.

SENATOR DYSON asked what the annual total would be for operating
expenses, including debt reduction, utilities and other costs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- May 13, 2003



M5. RYAN explained it would be a conbination of the operating
costs and the debt servicing costs.

SENATOR DYSON noted that would anmpbunt to roughly $1.6 nmllion
per year. He asked where the public health lab is |ocated.

COWMWM SSI ONER BALLARD replied it is next door to the proposed
| ab.

SENATOR DYSON asked how nuch is paid for the current |ease at
the Palmer facility.

COWMM SSI ONER BALLARD said it is considerably |ess.

M5. RYAN estimated current paynents were closer to $100, 000 per
year.

SENATOR DYSON asked when the state would finish principal
paynments for the COPs.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD advi sed the termis 15 years.

CHAIR GARY STEVENS thanked Senator Dyson for conparing the
projected $200,000 paynent to the ~current $100,000 |ease
payment .

SENATOR GRETCHEN QGUESS said the departnment was speaking of
$200,000 per year in utilities and mintenance, but they said
the |ease purchase was $100, 000, not the utilities and
mai nt enance.

She asked why there was such a difference between the current
operating costs and the projected costs.

M5. RYAN explained that the new facility meets all codes for
heating, ventilation and air handling and includes an auxiliary
power source. Al of which accounts for the cost differential.

SENATOR GUESS stated she was surprised that only half the
enpl oyees would nove from the Palner facility and asked which
j obs woul d stay.

M5. RYAN said there are tw food safety inspectors, four
pesticide program enployees, a state and a federal veterinarian
and a variety of indirectly related DEC positions that don’t
necessarily rely on the | ab services.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- May 13, 2003



SENATOR GUESS asked about the resolution to exanmine a facility
near the airport for the |ab.

CHAIR GARY STEVENS said M. Mtchell’ s letter addresses the ASI
consideration [SCR 6]. He asked the comm ssioner to comment on
the status of that resol ution.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD expl ai ned that the departnment conducted a
si de-by-side analysis of renodeling sonme of the facility
occupi ed by Al aska Seafood International that is |ocated by the
airport versus the stand-alone facility that is on state owned
property at Tudor and Boniface and next to the public health
| ab. Upon review ng the analysis, the governor recomended that
DEC proceed wth the stand-alone facility.

SENATOR GUESS requested a copy of the analysis and asked if
there was a reason to set the anobunt in statute rather than an
giving an “up to” figure. She then asked what assurance the
public has that the cost would be at or bel ow the projection.

MR M TCHELL said that, from his perspective, the “sum certain”
is the requirenent, by law, that the Legislature approves an

anount. It could be expressed as a “not to exceed anpbunt” but
the Legislature has preferred to know nore definitively how nuch
they would spend. This bill has had a |ot of effort expended to

acconplish the new facility and to help that DOR provided an
estimate of investnment earnings on the proceeds while they are
bei ng drawn down. Although it’s only $140, 000, current budgetary
conditions nmake it desirable to nmake sure that the authorizing
body of the Legislature is aware of where the noney woul d go.

COMWM SSI ONER  BALLARD informed the comittee the site 1is
prepared, the wutilities are stubbed to the site, and the
drawings are at 70 percent conpletion. The project has been in
the works for seven years so many of the design and construction
uncertainties have already been addressed.

JOHN MACKI NNON, Deputy Conmmi ssioner wth the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities, said the state health |ab
was recently conpleted and is a simlar facility with regard to
code and | aboratory requirenents. They have accurate nunbers on
the cost of that facility and the proposed |lab would |ikely be
simlar in square foot costs. There are contingency pockets in
the overall budget process to take up any unforeseen
ci rcunst ances.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- May 13, 2003



SENATOR CONDERY asked if there were private sector facilities
that coul d neet the need.

DEPUTY COMM SSI ONER MACKI NNON said he would conpare |leasing a
facility to use as a food lab to taking a warehouse and turning
it into a hospital. It would be a trenmendous anount of work to
neet the code requirenents.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if anyone had approached the private
sector.

TOM LIVINGSTON, project architect, said his conpany did a
feasibility study for |easing versus building several years ago
and they determned they would be faced with constructing a
building within a building if they were to | ease space. Overall

| ease costs were higher than ownership costs.

SENATOR CONDERY sai d he supported the need for the facility.

SENATOR QGUESS asked how lab use would differ in the proposed
facility because the operating expenses are projected to be ten
ti mes higher

M5. RYAN explained the current |aboratory does not neet
| aboratory or OSHA standards, which neans their results are at
risk and could be refuted. Although there m ght be an increase
in sanples tested at the new lab, the main thing the public is
getting for the increased cost is know edge that the results are
accurate.

ROGER PAINTER, representative of the Alaska Shellfish Gowers
Associ ation, spoke in support of SB 215 Wth regard to
contracting services to the private sector, he said that there
are no private labs in the country that conduct paralytic
shel l fish poison tests or that can process water quality sanples
for mari ne waters.

Since the lab facilities were originally leased in Palner, the
clientele has shifted from agriculture to seafood. Because
seaf ood sanples must be in the lab within 30 hours fromthe tine
they are collected, having the lab in Anchorage rather than
Pal mer would nake it easier for businesses such as his to fit
within the tine constraints.

He commented that the current |ab was hopel essly antiquated when
he visited it last 15 years ago.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- May 13, 2003



ROGER SHANNON from Kenai asserted that the |ab should be placed
in the ASI [ Al aska Seafood International] building.

JULI E DECKER, executive officer from the Southeast Regional D ve
Fi shers Association, testified via teleconference in support of
the bill. She said the proposed lab is economcally vital to the
dive fishery and the current |ab staff does excellent work.

SENATOR CONDERY made a notion to nove CSSB 215(STA) and attached
fiscal notes from committee with individual recommendations and
asked for unani nous consent.

CHAl R GARY STEVENS asked for a roll call.

SENATOR DYSON asked to speak to the issue and stated it al nost
defies logic to build a new stand-al one lab rather than placing
it in the state owned building that houses ASI. Second, he said
he is intimdated by the 15 year obligation and has trouble with
the engineering estimates that nmke it alnobst as expensive to
put the lab in the existing building as it is to build a new
free standing building. In his view, the ASI building is a
nonunent to how poorly governnent does when it gets involved in
areas that should be left to the private sector.

SENATOR GUESS asked what the design costs were for the state
owned bui | di ng.

MR. MACKINNON said about $1 million was spent in design costs
for the stand alone building and those design costs aren't
adaptable to putting the facility in the ASI buil ding.

SENATOR GUESS asked if a true analysis would show that one woul d
be about $15 nillion and the other about $13. 3.

MR. MACKI NNON agreed if you were to start from ground zero.
SENATOR GUESS said, sunk costs are sunk costs, but from the
mar gi nal cost perspective the ASI building |ooks to be a better

long term option. She questioned why the Admi nistration decided
on the stand-al one buil ding.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked Senator Cowdery to renove his notion so
M. MacKi nnon coul d answer the question.

SENATOR CONDERY renmoved his nmtion to nove the bill from
commi ttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- May 13, 2003



MR. MACKINNON stated that the ASI building would be a better
option if the seafood |ab were needed for just 15 years, but at
the end of 15 years there would be operating costs to consi der.

SENATOR COWDERY commrented placing the lab in the ASI building
would Iimt future tenants.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS noted M. Mtchell wote a nenbo on March 28,
2003 that said the seafood |lab would use just five percent of
the ASI building and locating the lab there would nake it
difficult to find a tenant for the rest of the space.

SENATOR DYSON asked what portion of the operating costs would be
recovered through custoner fees.

COWM SSI ONER BALLARD replied they mght recover between 25 and
30 percent in fees by next year. They are raising fees as
qui ckly as possible, but sonme of the projected increases require
statutory change. Current fee incone is about $100, 000 per year
and with statutory changes they hope to increase it to about
$300, 000.

She added that AIDEA (Alaska Industrial Developnment and Export
Aut hority) only considered housing the lab in the ASI building
in the last year and by that tine the $1 nmillion to design the
stand-al one building was al ready spent, which is why there isn’t
a true side-by-side conparison

CHAIR GARY STEVENS said the current questions were of a
financial nature and he would like the Finance Committee to
address them

SENATOR CONDERY made a notion to nove CSSB 215(STA) and attached
fiscal notes fromcommttee and asked for unani nous consent.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked if there was any objection. There being
no stated objection, CSSB 215(STA) noved from conmttee.
#

#SJR 19
SJR 19- CONST. AM PERVANENT FUND | NCOVE

SENATOR GECRG ANNA LI NCOLN, bill sponsor, advised that HIR 3 was
the conpanion bill and she had aide Mark Ghadt with her to
answer technical questions. She paraphrased from the sponsor
statenent .

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- May 13, 2003



SJR 19 proposes a constitutional anmendnent that would
give constitutional protection to the dividend program
of the Al aska Permanent Fund. It ensures the Pernanent
Fund Dividend w Il endure.

This resolution is a reiteration of the popular
initiative proposed by fornmer Governor Jay Hammond
|late last year. SJR 19 would require a mjority vote
by Al askans before the Legislature could spend any of
the Permanent Fund earnings that currently go to the
dividend or to inflation proof the fund.

The Resolution would also maintain the distribution
formulas used to calculate the dividend that were in
place on July 21, 2002. This wll further guarantee
the Permanent Fund D vidend Program wll remain
i ntact.

It has been said that permanently protecting the
di vidend program mght nake the fund susceptible to

federal taxation. Section 3 of SIJR 19 will inmmediately
repeal Sections 1 and 2 if the IRS determ nes the fund
i s taxable.

The Permanent Fund dividend represents approximtely
one-eighth of Al aska’s econony, and is the nost direct
link between the people of Alaska and the resources
they own. Wth the ongoing budget deficit, it is in
the interest of Alaskans to constitutionally protect
our dividend on which many people depend and wth
whi ch they contribute to a healthy econony.

She noted the fiscal note from the Division of Elections shows
an expenditure of $1,500 in 2005 to add the information to the
Oficial Election Panphlet. She discussed the sectional analysis
prepared by Tamara Cook. [Copy in bill file.]

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked her to comment on the | RS issues.

MARK GNADT, aide to Representative Eric Croft, explained that
certain people are concerned that if the dividend were placed in
statute thereby renmoving the appropriation power from the
Legislature, then the dividend would beconme nore I|ike a
corporate dividend as opposed to a dividend for the public good.
The IRS has nmade no specific findings in that regard and
al though there is sonme history that substantiates both sides,
none are closely related to the Alaska Permanent Fund. The
sponsors believe the IRS is waiting for the state to nake a nove

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- May 13, 2003



before they nmake any determnation. That’s why they put the
provision in Section 3, which would suspend the anendnents
imrediately if the IRS were to initially determ ne that any or
all of the fund is taxable. If the final judgnent finds that the
fund is not taxable, the suspension termnates. If it finds that
the fund is taxable, the suspension remains in effect.

SENATOR JOHN COWNDERY said the dividend was never considered an
entitlenent to the fund and should never be considered as such
He asked whether a tax attorney had been consulted.

SENATOR LI NCOLN replied they asked | egislative |legal to respond.

SENATOR CONDERY advised this is a high-risk ganble and there are
other options that would assure a dividend and not risk
t axati on.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said the point is well taken.

BOB BARTHOLOVEW Chief Operating Oficer wth the Al aska
Per manent Fund Cor poration, advised he had three conmments.

 Historically, the trustees have been concerned about the
t ax-exenpt status of the fund. Enclosed in the comittee
packets is the 1998 opinion from the Attorney GCeneral’s
Ofice related to the tax-exenpt status of the fund. Wth
regard to the clause to repeal the anendnent, he cautioned
that once the process is started there is no guarantee the
IRS wouldn’t look at the current status of the fund and
current issues unrelated to the constitutional anmendnent.

* They appreciate that SJR 19 is a proposal that is separate
from the Board of Trustee proposal that deals wth
noderni zing distribution of the fund related to the
i nvest ment managenent perspective. They encourage continued
separation of the issues.

* As the policy debate continues regarding protecting the
di vidend, they encourage |ooking at the best way to do that
mechanically. This proposal is to use existing statutory
| anguage, but the corporation believes the existing
statutes cause problens because they were designed for an
investment fund of 20 years ago, which is conpletely
different that the fund they guide today. Part of the
board’s recommendation is to update the statutes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- May 13, 2003



SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked for verification that changing the
constitution to POW [percent of market value] doesn’'t guarantee
the dividend programit is sinply a different managenent payout.

MR.  BARTHOLOVEW explained that the current proposal in the
Senate and House woul d guarantee an annual distribution fromthe
permanent fund, not what the distribution would be used for.

SENATOR GUESS asked if there had been any communication with the
| RS.

MR. BARTHOLOMEW said it is his understanding that they have had
no direct communication with the |IRS.

PETRIA FALKENBERG from Kenai testified via teleconference in
support of SJR 19 because it protects the PFD. The PFD bel ongs
to the people and they should have a say in how the governnent
spends its resources.

JAMES PRICE testified via teleconference in support of SJR 19
He said it’'s inportant to give the people a chance to vote on
this inportant issue.

FRED STURMAN, testified via teleconference that this would take
noney out of |egislators hands and he was in favor of that.

ROGER SHANNON testified via teleconference and said he agreed
wi th the other speakers and urged passage of SJR 19.

LORI CHURCHILL testified via teleconference to urge passage of
SJR 19. She advi sed she was sending witten testinony as well.

RUBY KIME from Ninilchik testified via tel econference in support
of SJR 19. She said she favored restricting the anmount of noney
available to the Legislature.

SENATOR CONDERY asked that information regarding how far back
the IRS would look if they decided the fund was taxable be
passed to the Judiciary Cormittee.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she would | ook for that information.
SENATOR GUESS made a nmotion to npve SIJR 19 and attached fi scal
notes from commttee wth individual recomendati ons. There

bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.
#

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- May 13, 2003



#SB 211
SB 211- REGULATI ONS: NOTI CE AND DI STRI BUTI ON

CRAIG TILLERY, Assistant Attorney General, stated he was
avai l abl e for questions.

CHAIR GARY STEVENS asked M. Tillery if passage of the bill
woul d result in substantial savings.

MR. TILLERY advi sed they expected the savings to be in the range
of $215, 000.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked how general circulation of a
newspaper woul d be judged.

MR. TILLERY advised the current rule is that notices are placed
in just one newspaper that has general circulation, which is
judged by the extent to which they reach the public. They I ook
at where likely interest would be for a particular bill and have
determ ned that Anchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau newspapers woul d
all technically qualify under the provision

SENATOR GUESS asked if a departnent head woul d nake the judgnent
on general circul ation.

MR TILLERY said that was correct.

SENATOR GUESS asked if they knew how many Al askan househol ds
have Internet access and what conputer requirenents there woul d
be to use the web site.

MR. TILLERY said any conputer connection would work and people
have access to the Internet at hone, at work and at the public
|ibrary. He said access is pervasive, but he didn't have data on
t he nunber of people with Internet access.

SENATOR GUESS asked whether the bill would alter DOT [ Departnment
of Transportation & Public Facilities] notices to conmunities
regarding traffic issues.

MR, TILLERY said this bill deals only with regul ati ons.

SENATOR GUESS asked if there was a reason that only the pipeline
regul ati ons were nmenti oned and not other RCA regul ati ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- May 13, 2003



MR.  TILLERY said they took out the regulations that are
techni cal and al nost exclusively of interest to industry and not
of general public interest.

SENATOR GUESS advised they mght want to rethink the pipeline
act because it is becomng nore consumer based and of greater
i nterest.

SENATOR JOHN COADERY made a notion to nbve SB 211 and attached
fiscal note fromconmmttee and asked for unani nbus consent.

SENATOR GUESS obj ect ed.

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called for a roll <call. Senators Cowdery,
Dyson and Chair Gary Stevens voted yea and Senator Quess voted
nay. SB 211 noved from commttee.

#

#HIR 22
HIR 22- PATRI OT ACT AND DEFENDI NG Cl VI L LI BERTI ES

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLIS, sponsor of SJR 15, stated his resolution
was superceded by action in the House. He described this as a
bi -partisan effort that nmakes a strong statenent.

JOVD STEWART, staff to Representative David Cuttenberg, said the
original resolution was put through quickly after Septenber 11
and a nunber of the provisions seriously undermne |iberties and
civil rights. There is a growng groundswell throughout the
country to have the Act reviewed and perhaps anended. Currently
there is a nove to take out sone of the sunset provisions that
are in the Act and there is also a Patriot Act Il that would
expand on sone of the surveillance provisions. This would
support Representative Don Young in his effort to anend the
| egi sl ati on.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS announced it was his intention to nove the
resolution out of the conmttee that day.

JOHN BRADI NG testified via tel econference in support of HIR 22.
FRANK TURNEY testified via tel econference in support of HIR 22.

TAPE 03-31, SIDE A
5:10 pm

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- May 13, 2003



SCOIT CALDER testified via teleconference in support of HIR 22
although he noted he didn't agree wth renoving the term
“probabl e cause” as the criteria and replacing it with the term
“reasonabl e suspicion.”

JODI OLMSTEAD testified via tel econference in support of HIR 22.

GRAHAM STOREY from Nonme testified via teleconference to say he
did not support HIR 22. Citizens may gather in groups and they
may criticize their governnent. He urged Alaska to pass a
resolution in support of the right not to be attacked by
terrorists.

JENNI FER RUDDI NGER, Executive Director of the A aska GCvil
Li berties Union (ACLU), testified via teleconference that the
ACLU supports HIR 22 including the words “reasonabl e suspicion.”

MR TIMOTHY BURGESS, U.S. Departnent of Justice attorney for
Al aska said he found out about the hearing the previous evening
from Senator Guess. He stated:

One of the responsibilities of ny office is to enforce
federal law, including the Patriot Act, so | was a
little concerned to make sure that both sides of the
story in regard to this act and what the federal
governnment is doing in conjunction with our state and
| ocal <colleagues is brought before your conmttee
before this resolution is passed. | think there are a
| ot of msconceptions being offered about what the
Patriot Act does or doesn't do and that is part of the
concern | have. | think, for instance, there 1is
concern that under the Patriot Act federal agents are
now able to review library records and books checked
out by US. citizens. If you read the act, that's
absolutely not true. In order to do that, agents have
to get a court order approving their |ooking for those
records. It can't be for US citizens. It can't even
be for donestic crines or donestic terrorism It has
to be in regard to an international terrorism
investigation after a court approves us seeking those
records. So, that just highlights sonme of the
m sconceptions that are being, | think, used in order
to support resolutions such as this.

I''m al so concerned, for instance, with the suggestion,

as | read it, from this proposed resolution, that
state enpl oyees can't cooperat e W th federa

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- May 13, 2003



authorities unless there is a reasonable suspicion of
a violation of Alaska law. Well there are a nunber of
differences between Alaska |aw and federal |aw but
there may well be crimnal activity that concerns a
federal law related to terrorism and | think one
reading of this proposed resolution mght chill state
enpl oyees from cooperating wth their f edera

colleagues in trying to prevent another terrorism
incident. So, those are a few of the concerns | have
and if, M. Chairman, if you or the other Senators at
sonme point would like additional information from ne

I'"d be happy to provide that. | didn't prepare any
formal testinony today because | wasn't really aware
that this was going to be considered today. But, | am

concerned that the Senate reach out to the |aw
enforcement community, which 1is charged wth the
responsibility for preventing anot her terrorism
i ncident |ike happened in Septenber of 2001.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, aide to Representative John Coghill, said she
wanted to address several issues:

The resolution says state resources would not be used to
enforce federal law, but that doesn't nean the state
couldn’t or wouldn’t cooperate in an investigation.
Congressman Don Young is planning to introduce |egislation
to renove sone of the provisions of the Patriot Act.

During the Revolutionary War, Benjam n Franklin said, “They
that can give up essential Iliberty to obtain a little
tenporary safety deserve neither liberty nor safety.”

SENATOR DYSON made a notion to nove CSHIR 22(RLS) and attached
fiscal note from commttee wth individual recomendations.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

#

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Gary Stevens adjourned the neeting at 5:25 pm

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- May 13, 2003



